







36

87
87

THE VESTRY BOOK

This book contains the records of the Churchwardens and Overseers from 1848 - 1884

The Churchwardens and Overseers ran Village affairs before the setting up of the Parish Council.

The Parishioners are requested to Meet
in the Vestry on Thursday the 6th day of April Next
at 11 of Clock in the forenoon for the purpose of Nominating
and Appointing Churchwardens, Overseers, and Surveyors
of the Highways for the year ensuing

J. Lovebraun Fulford
Perpetual Curate

(Signed)

Geo. R. Hole }
Wm. Tapscott } Churchwardens

Benj. Osborne }
Wm. W. Raymond } Overseers
R. Smith }
Thomas. Leatt }

Dated Woodbury 25th March 1845

Opeably to the above notice we the
Parishioners in Vestry Assembled on the Nomination
of W^o. Hole seconded by W^o. Tapscott do appoint W^o.
Tho^s. Gibbins and W^o. James Asford Churchwardens for
the year ensuing, We also Nominate the following
Householders and Rate Payers for Overseers

Charlotte Tucker
Thomas Matthews
Thomas Porter
Maryon Maydon
Humphrey Blake
Robert Phillippe
Thomas Kerlake
Samuel Skinner
John Statten
George Luke

(Turn over)

2
We also Appoint the following Persons
and rate Payers for Surveyors of the Highways

Robt Brent
John White
Henry Pearce
Thomas Franklin

The Overseers is hereby ordered to summon James
Olea before the Magistrates for the Poor's Rate
return in arrears for Mallocks and Taylors Estate
the amount of £1⁰ 3⁰ 2 - We also order a Poor's Rate
to be made and collected at Dispence in the Pound

T. Trapton Fuller Chairman

Robert Brent M.D.
James Lee.
Wm Wolrige
Thos Gibbings
John White
Thos P. Hale
Joseph Austing
Richard Smith
William Toppitt
Thos. Franklin
James Ashford
Benjⁿ Osborne
John Hallett
P. Daywooding

3 The Parish Officers and Rates are requested to meet in the Vestry on Tuesday the 20th June instant at 11 o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of ordering and granting a Church Rate to defray the necessary Expenses of the year, Also for ordering a Poor Rate for the quarter ending Michaelmas, and for revising the Poor Rate, Rates objecting to the present rate as being overrated are requested to send their names stating the Property to the Vestry Clerk on or before Saturday the 17th instant

Thos^r Gibbins } Churchwardens

Humphry Blake }
Thos^r Kerlake } Overseers
John Saller }

Dated Woodbury 6th June 1844

Agreeably to the above notice we the undersigned Parishioners do Grant and order the Churchwardens a Church Rate at two pence in the Pound - We also order a Poor Rate to be collected at ten pence in the Pound - The Parish Officers is hereby ordered to take legal proceedings against Richard Smith (late) Overseer for the recovery of a Balance due from him to the Parish - We also Agree Unanimously that the following Persons be Chosen as a Committee to assist the Parish Officers in revising the Poor Rate

John White

Thos^r Franklin

Rich^d Seward

(turn over)

4
Richd. Estes
John Hallett
Dr. Brent

William Sanders
William Tapscott
James Sanders

Five of the Committee to form a Quorum
to meet on Thursday the 22nd instant at 9. a. m.
at the Globe Inn

J. Sargent Sulford Chairman
W. Sanders
James Atford
J. Gibbins
William Tapscott
Robert Brent. M.D.
John Hallett
W. Tapscott
J. White
Thos. Franklin

(Copy)

The Parishioners are requested
to Meet in the Vestry on Thursday the 26th instant
at 11 of Clock in the forenoon for the purpose of Auditing
the Overseers half yearly Account.

And to Consent on other Parochial Matters which
may be brought before the Meeting.

(Signed)
 Humphrey Blake }
 Thomas Kitchin } Overseers
 John Satter }

James Ashford }
 Thomas Gibbins } Churchwardens

Dated Woodbury 14th October 1848

Agreeably to the above Notice we the undersigned
in Vestry assembled do Approve of the Overseers Acc^{ts}
we also order the Assistant Overseer to make Application for
an order of Removal for John Hyatt, at the Magistrates Meeting
on Monday the 13th Nov^r next, Mr. Cole is also requested
to inform Mr. Luke Overseer that he is to Collect all
Monies that may be due for Poor Rates as none but (Void
Houses) are legally excused, And all persons in Arrears
Mr. Luke is hereby ordered to summon, before the Magistrates

it is also proposed by Sir Pastor Blake seconded
by Mr. James Ashford that the Poor Rate be readjusted
According to the Accrage of each Farm as Found in The
Tithe Commutation, which took effect under the Act
passed for that purpose in 1836, And that it be immediately
done, so as to take effect at the next Collection

Also ordered that it be Advertized for in Western Times
and Newmans Paper for a Competent Surveyor to make a new
Valuation for the Parish of Woodbury for making a New
Poor Rate ^{as soon as possible} The Vestry Clerk is requested by the
Churchwardens to take a Letter this day to the

6
Rev. J. L. Fulford requesting him to return
immediately to them the Porcelain Basin that
was seen in the Vestry Room on Saturday last

Craighton F. Eliot

chairman

Price W. Lee

Robert Brent

John White

Geo. W. Hole

Mr. Wolrige

Thos. Franklin

(Copy) of a letter written to the Rev. J. L. Fulford

We the Churchwardens of the Parish of Woodbury present
their Compliments to the Rev. J. L. Fulford and will
thank him to return to them immediately the Porcelain
Basin removed by him from the Church and was last
seen in the Vestry Room of the Parish Church on
Saturday last

James Ashford } Churchwardens
Thos. Gibbins }

Woodbury 26th October 1848

7 The Parashioners are requested to meet in the Vestry
on Tuesday next the 7th Instant at 11 o'Clock in
the forenoon to Consider the appointment of Surveyor
to a new Valuation of the Parish — Also to consider
the necessity of supporting the Churchwardens at an attempt
to deprive them of their Rights on the Incumbent — and
to Consult on other Parochial Matters.

John Salter
Thomas Keslake
Humphrey Blake } Overseers

Thomas Gibbins
James Ashford } Churchwardens.

Dated, Woodbury 2nd November 1848.

Agreeably to the above Notice we the Undersigned Parashioners
in Vestry assembled do agree to the following Resolutions
1st It was proposed by Doctor Brent and seconded by
Mr. John White that the Resolution pass'd at the
Vestry Meeting on the 26th Ult: — respecting a new
Valuation of the Parish by a Surveyor — be rescinded
and that the Churchwardens & Overseers of the Parish
~~be requested to make~~ a new Poor's Rate — taking the Tithe Computation
Act of 1836 as their Guide & putting each Individual
up to their Acerge — and keeping the Assessment
of the Parish as low as consistent with their duty.

2nd It was proposed by Mr. Thomas Gibbins — and
seconded by the Rev. L. Butler — that the Letter just
read by the Chairman — the following of which is a Copy
~~be~~ be signed sent by Dr. Brent (who acts for the
Vestry Clerk in his absence) to the Incumbent (the Rev.
J. L. Fulford) Copy.

Rev. Sir

Vestry Room of the Parish of Woodbury Nov^r 7/48
I am instructed to inform you that at

8
a Parish Meeting held this day a Resolution was passed directing that the Lodgewood Pasture part of the Goods belonging to the Parish should be given to Sir Thomas Peyton Fuller Esq^t Drake Baronet. — The Law directs that no part of the Goods of the Parish shall be taken away or alienated but by a Vote of the Parishioners in Vestry assembled — And as you have taken possession of the said Pasture without any such Authority — which you have not thought proper to restore — altho, demanded of you by the Churchwardens by letter under their hands — I am directed to communicate to you that if it is not immediately returned to them, they will institute proceedings at Law against you to recover the same. — I remain Rev^d Sir

your very humble Servant
Robert Brent. M^d.

To
Rev^d J. L. Fulford. acting in the absence of the Vestry Clerk.

3rd Moved by W^m Thomas Franklin — and seconded by W^m Coles — that the Incumbent in reply to his letter to the Churchwardens "viz: W^m Fulford would be glad to be informed whether the Churchwardens do or do not authorize him to provide Coals for the Vestry Fire." that the Meeting are unanimous in refusing Coals to the Rev^d J. L. Fulford for the use of the Vestry —

4th Moved by W^m John White seconded by W^m John Salter that the Churchwardens be requested to write to the Incumbent stating the opinion of the Parishioners in Vestry assembled are unanimous in opinion condemning the expense incurred by him in washing Surplices — and suggest that 6 times a year appear to be ample — and that the recommendation will be attended to — as 4 times a year was formerly what was allowed to the former Incumbent.

To all of these Resolutions we severally agree and

9
subscribe our Names. Mr Wolsey Chairman
Trapton Fuller Eli. Edwards
Thos. Gibbins
Percy W Lee
Frank. R Hole
Benjn Osborne
Jas. Sanders
Joseph Phillips
William Phillips
John Hallett
P. Dagworthy
James Tomeroy
Thos. Leatt
Rich. White
Rich. Cole
Jas. A. Butler
Thos. Franklin
William Sapscott
Thomas Ware
Thos. Matthews
John Vicks
John White
John Salter
William Payne
Robert Brent. M.D. acting as Certifying Clerk.

His mark

At a Vestry Meeting of the Parishioners of this Parishably Called pursuant to the following Notice

The Parishioners are requested to Meet in the Vestry on Tuesday the 12th instant at Eleven o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of deciding on returning to Sir J. J. Fuller Elliott Drake Baronet the Wedgewood Bason, Which the late Lady Fuller Elliott Drake presented to the Parish, it being no longer used for the purpose of which it was intended

J. Loveband Fulford Perpetual Curate

James Ashford }
Thomas Gibbings } Churchwardens

Dated Woodbury 7th December 1848

Accordingly to the above Notice we the Parishioners in the Vestry Room assembled this 12th day of December 1848. Captain Woolbridge, R.N. in the Chair It was moved by J. P. Brent, and seconded by Colonel Lee, Resolved unanimously that the Wedgewood Bason presented to the Parish by the late Lady Fuller Elliott Drake being now no longer used for the purpose for which the same was intended be returned to Sir Traugott Drake Bart. And that the Churchwardens be requested to Concur with the Vestry in this Resolution

Whereupon Mr James Ashford and Mr Thomas Gibbings the Churchwardens being present in the Vestry expressed their Consent to the above Resolution

Resolved Also that the Vestry Clerk be directed to deliver the Bason into the hands of the Churchwardens for them in their judgement to do what is consistent with their duty in the accordance with the Resolution

Moved by Colonel Lee seconded by J. P. Brent

11
a Vote of thanks be given to Captain Woolridge for his
Able Conduct in the Chair

Mr Woolrige Chairman
T. Trayton & Elliott Drake
Robert Brent. M.D.
Anna W. Lee.
Zach. B. Holt
James Ashford
Thos. Gibbins
John White
John Hallett
John Salter
Thomas Leatt + his mark
R. Dagworthy
Thos. Franklin
Joseph Austin
William Sapscott
William Phillips
Wm. Bagd bear + his mark
Jas. Butter
John Nicks
J. Hayward
W. Lindsey Vestry Clerk

Parish of Woodbury }
 St. Thomas Union }
 County of Devon }

At a Meeting of the Ratepayers of the above Parish and owners of Property therein entitled to Vote pursuant to the Provisions of an Act passed in the fifth year of the reign of his late Majesty King William IVth intituled "An Act for the Amendment and better Administration of the Lawes relating to the Poor in England and Wales, held at the Vestry Room in this Parish on Thursday the 21st day of December 1848 pursuant to notice of said Meeting duly published and given on Saturday the 23rd day of December

Robert Brent. W.D. Chairman

It was Resolved

That the Churchwardens and Overseers shall, and they are hereby directed to raise the sum of ten Pounds as a Fund for defraying the Expenses of the Emigration of Poor Persons having settlements in this Parish and being willing to emigrate, to be paid out of the Rates raised or to be raised for the relief of the Poor in this Parish and to be applied under such Rules, Orders and Regulations, as the Poor Law Commissioners shall on that behalf direct

The above is a true Extract from the Vestry Book of the Parish referred to in the annexed Certificate

J. Lombard Fulford Minister

Thos. Gibbings }
 James Ashford } Churchwardens

Witness H. Lindsey }
 Humphrey Blake } Overseers
 Thomas Redlake }

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 15th instant at 10 o'clock in the forenoon to Consider respecting the state of the Roads, and for ordering a Way Rate Also for nominating Constables for the year ensuing as required by Act of Parliament

J. Loveland Fulford
Perpetual Curate

Robert Brent M. D. }
John White } Surveyors of
Henry Pearce } the Highways
Thos. Franklin }

H. Loring Vestry Clerk &
Asst. Curate

Dated Woodbury
10th Feb^y 1849

Agreeably to the above notice we the undersigned Parishioners in Vestry Assembled do order the surveyors of the Highways to obtain estimates from Masons, for turning an Arch over the brook near the Pound, Also the surveyors is requested to obtain Subscriptions from Gentlemen and Parishioners towards the same, We also order a way Rate to be collected at twopence in the Pound, We also nominate the following Parishioners ~~for~~ as Constables for the year ensuing John Stamp, Richard Newwood, William Peppnell, Thomas Ware, John Piles, James Harris, James Phillips, and William Satten, We also order Mr Brents Bill two Guineas to be paid for Attendance before Magistrates, to give evidence on Harts and Hyatts Settlement, We also order Mr Coleridge the Lawgivers Bill to be paid Forty Seven Pounds, seventeen shillings and sevenpence

Thos. Fuller Shildrake
Chairman
(turn over)

Robert Brent M.D.
 Geo W Hole
 W Sanders
 John White
 Tho Franklin
 Henry Pearce
 J. Lindzey Vestry Clerk

The Surveyors of the Highway request the Parishioners to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 15th instants at 11 of Clock in the forenoon to Consult respecting of lowering the Hill leading from Woodbury to Grindle Commonly known by the name of Deepway Hill

Dated Woodbury
 10th March 1849

J. Lindzey Vestry Clerk

Agreeably to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry assembled do agree, after Consulting, that the above named Hill, Cannot be lowered unless at a Considerable Expence, to the Parishioners therefore we unanimously, Agree not to entertain the Question, and therefore dismiss the Application

J. W. Hole, Chairman
 James Ashford
 Robert Brent M.D.
 John White
 W. Sanders
 Benjⁿ Osborne
 Tho Franklin
 Henry Pearce

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry
on Monday the 26th instant at Eleven o'clock in the forenoon
for the purpose of nominating Overseers, and Appointing Church
Wardens and Surveyors of the Highway, Also for Auditing
Overseers and Waywardens Acct., and to consult on any
other Parish Affairs which may be brought before the meeting

J. Loveland & Joseph Perpetual Curate

Thos. Gibbings } Churchwardens
James Ashford }

Samuel Blake } Overseers
Thomas Kerlake }

Robert Brent M. D. } Surveyors
Thos. Franklin }

J. Lindsey Vestry Clerk

Lated Woodbury
17th March 1849

At a Vestry Meeting of the Parishioners Agreeably to the above
notice, It was resolved that Robert Brent M. D. and
Richard Cole be appointed by the Parishioners according to
^{the} annual ^{and ancient} custom Churchwardens for the ensuing year, we
also appoint James Ashford and Thomas Gibbings Sidersmen

It was also resolved that the following Parishioners
be nominated Overseers

Thomas Matthews	Satterton
Thomas Porter	Caquie Nutwell
Maryon Stogson	Esford
Samuel Skinner	Town

(Sinner)

Robt Phillips
 Sir Foster Lake Bart
 Joseph Tucker
 James Langdon Butler
 William Bagwan
 William Pyle

It was also resolved that the following Parishioners
 be appointed Surveyors of the Highways

Colonel Lee
 James Sanders
 Robert Poppell
 Francis R. Hole

The Overseers Lists were read over, and the present
 Verge ^{Consider} ~~very much~~ ^{perpetrated}, that Overseers appears to have been
 too lenient in not collecting Poor Rates when required, and
 that Overseers in future are hereby ordered, to summon
 all arrears due — every quarter

The Surveyors Lists were read over and Approved of
 we also ^{order} a Collection of Poor Rates at tenpence in the £?

M. Dayworthy
 John Bullard

J. Loveland Treasur Chairman
 G. Frayton Fuller Shillwale

P. W. Lee.
 Robert. Bret. l. d.

Brito Cole
 Benjn Osborne

Ed. Hayward
 J. Lee

Rich. White

William Tappin

Tho. Gibbins

James Ashford

Tho. Hole

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 19th instant at 11 of Clock in the forenoon for the purpose of ordering a Collection of Way Rates to defray the Expences of the Roads

(Signed) Fran^{co}. K. Hole }
Bria W. Lee } Surveyors of
Jas. Sanders } The Highways
Robt. Pepprell }

Dated Monday
12th April 1749

At a Vestry Meeting of the Parishioners Agreeably to the above notice it was resolved that a Collection of Way Rates at Four Pence in the Pound be granted for defraying the Expences on the Roads
Traighton J. Elwell Drake
Chairman

Bria W. Lee
James Ashford
Robert Brent. W.D.
Thos Gibbings
John Bullett

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 17th instant at 11 of Clock in the forenoon for the purpose of deciding whether a certain Road, near Southell, commonly called Muddy Lane is a Parish Road and to be repaired as such

(Signed) Bria W. Lee }
Fran^{co}. K. Hole } Surveyors of
Jas. Sanders } The Highways

Dated 12th May 1749

Agreeably to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry Assembled do Consider it to be a Parish Road and request the surveyors to repair the same

J. Linder }
Thos Gibbings Chairman
Benjn. Aspinne
John Glanwill

In Consequence of an Order received from Mr. Bowring Officer Appointed by the Board of Health for Clearing all obstructions and Clearing all Nuisances from the Brooks through the Village as required by Act of Parliament

The Surveyors of the Highways request the the Voters and Parishioners to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 9th instant at 11 of Clock in the forenoon to take into Consideration and Consult on the above subject, in order of Carrying the same into immediate effect

(Signed) Thos. R. Hole } Surveyors of
 Jas. Sanders } the Highways

Dated Woodbury 4th August 1849

Agreeably to the above Notice we the Parishioners in Vestry Assembled do unanimously Agree that the Surveyors of the Highways do carry the above order into immediate effect, Accordingly as they are directed by Act of Parliament and that they employ the Labours of the Parish having families on the Roads, when they are in want of Labour, and that their Hours of working be from 7 of Clock A. M. to 5 of Clock P. M. no man to receive more than 7/- per week on the Roads, the Waywardens are requested to use great discretion

Thos Gibbings Chairman

Parce W Lee

Robert Brent. Secy.

Jas. Sanders

Joseph Phillips

William Chappell

Wm Sapscott

(Copy)
St. Thomas Union

The 31st August 1849

To the Churchwardens and Overseers of the Parish of
Woodbury

Gentlemen

The Guardians finding Complaints under
the Nuisances Prevention Act rapidly increasing, and
the sending of their Authorized Officer to investigate
and report on all occasions attended with considerable,
and growing expense, have this day resolved

That the Parishes of the union be requested to
select and recommend to the Board some persons to superin-
-tend the execution, in their several Parishes, of the Rules
and Regulations of the General Board of Health for the
Removal of Nuisances; and to return the names of the Parties
nominated, with the agreed terms as early as convenient
for their due Appointment by the Board of Guardians
Your Obed^t. Servants
Bidwell & Bowring
Clerks to the Guardians

In Pursuance to the above order received from the
Board of Guardians, of the St. Thomas Union respecting
the Nuisances Prevention Act, The Parishioners are
requested to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next
the 13th instant at 11 of Clock, in the forenoon to deliberate
and report on the above subject.

Robert Brent M. D.

Rick^d. Coler

(Signed)

Margery Stogson

Thomas Pater

} Churchwardens
&
} Overseers of
} Woodbury

Dated Woodbury

7th Sept. 1849

(Turn over)

Agreeably to the foregoing notices we the
 Parishioners in Vestry assembled do unanimously
 agree to appoint H. Lindsey Ap^l. Overseer as Officer
 to inspect all grievances and report the same
 to the Board of Guardians ^{of the St. Thomas Union} and that he be paid
 for his trouble and ^{all} expences attending the same

The Ap^l. Overseer is requested and ordered to
 answer the letter received from Tottenham acknowledging
 the Paupers Quirk and Sandford as Parishioners of
 Woodmay

Trayston F. Whitbrooke
 Chairman

J^r. Sanders
 John White
 W^m. Sanders
 Rich^d. Colis
 James Ashford
 Porcia M^r. Lee

Dated 13th Sept. 1849

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Globe Inn on Thursday next the 11th instant at one o'clock, P. M. for the purpose of carrying out the Resolution agreed to at a Vestry Meeting held on the 7th November 1848 (viz)

That the Churchwardens and Overseers of the Parish be requested to make a new Poor's Rate taking the Tithe Commutation Act of 1836 as their guide, putting each Individual up to their Overage and keeping the Assessment of the Parish as low as consistent with their duty

(Signed)

Robert Brent, M. D.	} Churchwardens
Rich ^d Coles	
and	
Thomas Porter	} Overseers of Woodbury
Margery Hodgson	
Thomas Matthews	
Samuel Skinner	

Dated Woodbury
4th October 1849

Committee Appointed to assist the Churchwardens and Overseers to make a new Poor's Rate according to the above notice

- Mr Clayton P. Elliott Drake Chairman
- Mr James Sanders
- Mr James Ashford
- Mr John White
- Brice W. Lee Gornie
- Mrs. M^{rs} Perambelin

(Turn over)

Mr. Rich^d Dagworthy

Mr. Wm. Tappett

Mr. John Satter

The above ^{Committee} are requested to meet at the
Globe Inn on Wednesday next the 17th
instant precisely at 10 of Clock in the forenoon
for the Purpose of carrying out the Resolution
described in the Notice

Trayton F. Shilldrake
Chairman

Robert Brent. M.D.

James Ashford

Rich^d Coles

John Satter

Jas Sanders

John Hallist

R Dagworthy

Rich^d White

Benjⁿ Osborne

Thos Matthews

William Chappell

William Stoves

Thos. Tate

John White

William Tappett

In Consequence of the repairs taking place at the Church, The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Globe Inn on Thursday the 8th day of November next at 10 o'clock, A.M. for the purpose of Examining and Auditing the (late) Churchwardens Accounts for the year ending May 1849, and to Conclude on other Parish Matters

Dated Woodbury
29th Oct. 1849

(Signed)

Robert Brent W. S. Churchwarden
Rich^d. Coler, Churchwarden

Agreeably to the above notice we the Parishioners assembled do approve of the Churchwardens Accounts - In Consequence of the Tenement commonly known by the name of Hazdens falling into the Parish Hands by the death of John Underwood Tarr we unanimously agree to let the same by tender for the term of 21 years from Christmas 1849, also the 3 Cottages known by the name of the ~~the~~ ^{Church} Houses for the same term, Tendlers to be delivered to the Churchwardens on or before the 22nd instant
Drayton F. Elliot Drake.
(Chairman)

John White
James Ashford
Rich^d. Coler

Price W. Lee
Robert Brent W. S.
J. J. Sanders
Wm. Saxscott
Thos. Franklin
B. Dayworthy
John Saltor
John Hallett
Rich^d. White

The Parishioners are requested to attend a Vestry Meeting on Thursday the 22^d instant at 10 of clock in the forenoon at the Globe Inn in the said Parish (the usual Place of Meeting being under repair) to receive a Communication from the Churchwardens, on the subject of certain Alterations made in the Church as is represented to them, by the order of the Rev^d J. L. Fulford minister thereof, without their sanction or Authority

(Signed) J. Loveland Fulford
Perpetual Curate

Robert Brent M.D. } Churchwardens
Rich^d Coles } Woodbury

Woodbury 16th Nov. 1849

Agreeably to the above Notice we the undersigned Parishioners Assembled, the Rev^d J. L. Fulford in the Chair (the Chairman) put it to the Meeting by the show of hands, whether the Screen or the Plastering ~~with~~ above ^{the} Screen should be removed (Only Four) held up their hands for it, The Chairman then put it for those to held up their hands that were against the Removal of the Screen the Majority of the Meeting held their hands up against the removal

The tender from Mr. Tho^s Gibbins was Accepted for Gardens Estate with Cottages known by the name of the Church Houses for a lease of 21 years from Christmas 1849 - The new Poor's Rates were

read over and Approved of
Tryton J. Spindler J. Loveland Fulford
Thomas Peter Wm Joseph M. Mearns
Percy W. Lee J. Sanders Jas. B. Holt
Hercules Barce

The Rev. S. Palford having had the Window
in the Chancel restored to its former state
and expressed a wish to have the Lath and Plaster
Partition removed over the Screen — The Churchwardens
request the Parishioners to meet them at the
Vestry on Thursday next the 6th instant at 11. a. m.
to Consult on the Propriety of its removal

Dated Woodbury
Decr. 1st 1829

J. Loveland Palford
Perpetual Curate

(Signed)

Robert Brent M. D. }
Richd. Coler — } Churchwardens

Appeals to the above notice we the Parishioners
in Vestry assembled do unanimously Agree to
the Removal of the Lath and Plastering to
be removed as above stated

Truxton F. E. Drake.

Thomas Porter

M^r. Sanders

J. R. S. Hodgdon

Wm. Tappan

Prizey Lee.

W. Weston

William Phillips

William Chappole

J. Lundy

Jas. S. Burt

J. Loveland Palford
Chairman.

Robert Brent M. D. }
Richd. Coler } Churchwardens

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Monday the 25th instant at Twelve o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of nominating Guardians, Appointing Churchwardens, and Surveyors of the Highways, Also nominating Overseers and Auditing Overseers and Surveyors Accounts

S: Loveland Mufson Perpetual Curate

Robert Brent M.D. Churchwarden

(Signed)

Thomas Porter }
Margery Stinson } Overseers
Samuel Skinner }

Dated Woodbury
15th March 1850

According to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry assembled, Proposed by R. Brent seconded by ^{Richard Coley} Edward Lee, that Sir Peyton Drake Bart and James Ashford be nominated Guardians

Proposed by Sir Peyton Drake seconded by Edward Lee that Robert Brent M.D. and Richard Coley be appointed Churchwardens, ~~by the Parishioners according to annual and ancient custom~~ & we also nominate the following are the Gentlemen Parishioners for Overseers

- Sir Peyton Drake Nutwell Quarter
- Robert Phillips Lower Quarter
- Joseph Tucker Egham Quarter
- James Langdon Batten Tollerston Quarter

- William Kyle
- William Bagman
- James Phillips
- John Scott Hayward
- Lewis Lee
- John Seymour

We Also Appoint for Surveyors of the Highways
 Isaac Wilson Eford Quarter
 William Sapsott Lower Quarter
 John Staller Nutwell Quarter
 John Stallett Tolleran Quarter

Proposed by Mr Thomas Franklin seconded by J^r B^r sent
 that Auditors be Appointed Annually to Examine Parish
 Officers Accounts 3 days ~~before~~ previous to Lady Day Meeting
 five to be the number three to form a Quorum the
 following Gentlemen is Appointed for the Committee

Thomas Gibbins
 William Sanders
 Thomas Franklin
 James Sanders
 John Scott Hayward

The wogwardens Accts were read over and Approved off
 the Overseers Accts were read over it was Proposed
 by Mr J^r B^r seconded by William Sanders
 that the Vestry Clerk J^r B^r Overseers Salary
 be reduced to £6 per year, the motion being
 put from ^{the Chairman} it was Carried by a Majority
 that it should remain as before, Also ordered
 that Melina Jones be not acknowledged as a pauper
 of Woodbury, Mr Coleridge Bill to be paid, in
 future all Charges to Lawyers to be paid
 every 6 months, and Costs before Magistrates to
 be paid immediately, Also ordered that a Poor
 Rate be Collected at 6 in the Pound, and a Way Rate
 3 in the Pound, Also Proposed ^{by Mr J^r B^r seconded} that a Committee
 be formed to Examine Overseers Accts ^{for} and
 that the Gentlemen, the other Page, do

from a Committee

- Ge. Beant
- John White
- Mrs Coles
- Ja^s. Sanders
- Thos Franklin
- Rich^d. Dayworthy
- Th^s Gibbins
- John Salter
- James Atford

And that the Rep^y Council make up the accounts for the last ten years

- Robert Beant
- Thos Franklin
- John Salter
- James Atford
- Thos Gibbins
- Ja^s. Sanders
- Rich^d. Dayworthy
- Lewis Lee
- John White
- Th^s Gibbins
- William Phillips
- Benja^m H^e Lee
- Rich^d. White

The Parishioners are requested to meet
the Churchwardens in the Vestry on Tuesday
the 16th day of April next at 11. a. m.
to take into Consideration an Application
made by Mr Gibbings respecting Harbours
Tenements

(Signed)

Loveband Fulford
Perpetual Curate

Woodbury
April 10 - 1850

Robert Brent W. D. }
Rich^d. Coles } Churchwardens

Mr Gibbings having made his application
the Parishioners did not think it right
to entertain the question, but wish it to
remain under the agreement, between the
Churchwardens, and Mr Gibbings Christmas last

Mr Ashford brought under the notice of
the Vestry that the (late) James Scarle's Boy
be Apprenticed for the term of 7 years to
James Sloman to learn the part of a Sailor
and that Dr Brent, ^{the medical officer} be requested to attend
him if required in sickness during the said
term without fee or reward, Provided
the said James Sloman put the boy at
School half days for the first year

The Churchwardens and the Parishioners
will and order that the Sacramental Plate
be kept in the Custody of the Rev^d. L. Fulford

James Ashford
Mr. Franklin
John Ballitt
Thomas Hallett

Loveband Fulford
Traynton F. Edwards
Robert Brent W. D.

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Vestry on Thursday the 10th instant at 11. a. m. to pass the Churchwardens Accts, and grant a Rate for the present year, also examine the Overseers half yearly Account, Also to take into Consideration the state of the Drains & Watercourses in the Parish, and transact other Business

Rowland Frieford
Perpetual Curate

Woodbury 5th October 1850

Robert Brent }
Rich^d. Cole } Churchwardens
Robt. Phillips }
J. Lindsey } Overseers

Agreeably to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry assembled, ~~after~~ do approve of the Churchwardens Account, We also Grant a Church Rate at one penny in the Pound for the necessary repairs of the Church, Proposed by G. Brent seconded by Mr Jas. Ashford that the Thanks of this Meeting be given to Mr Pastor Drake and Mrs Lewis for their kindness in beautifying the Parish Church The Overseers Account were read over and approved of

J. Rowland Frieford
Chairman

Trayton F. Shilldors

Robert Brent w. d.
Rich^d. Cole

James Ashford
William Tapscott
William Phillips
John Hall

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Saturday the 2^d November next at 11 o'clock in the forenoon to Consult respecting of Granting a certain sum of money from the Highway Rate towards making a Barrell Drain from the Green Gate to the Arch by Mr. Robt Phillips for Covering the Nuisances which now lodge at the Bottom of the Green

Satea Woodson
24th Oct. 1750

(Signed)

William Tapscott
John Hallett
John Salter
Israel Wilson

} Surveyors of
the Highway

Respectably to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry assembled after Consulting on the above subject, it was proposed by Sr. Brent, seconded by Mr. Coler, that no sum of money be taken from the Highway Rate for the above purpose, but that he proposes it be done by Voluntary Subscriptions, Mr. Ashford moved as an amendment, seconded by Mr. W. Sanders that it be done and that the money required be taken from the Highway Rate for the purpose, the Chairman put it to the meeting and Carried unanimously that no sum be taken from the Rates

J. Truxton Fuller Shid Drake
(Chairman)

Robert Brent. l. i. d.

Wm. Coler

Francis Nicks

Wm Phillips

John White

James Ashford

Tho. Franklin

William Chappell

32
The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Thursday next the 9th instant at 11 of Clock in the forenoon for the purpose of Granting a Way Rate to defray the necessary Expences on the Highways

Dated Wednesday
4 Jan^y 1751 (Signed) William Tapscott } Surveyors of
Isaac Wilson }
John Salter } the Highways
John Hallett }

Accordingly to the above notice we the Parishioners in Vestry assembled (Mr. William Tapscott moved seconded by Mr. John Hallett) that this meeting do adjourn to the Globe at 12 of Clock for the Convenience of the Parishioners

Robert Brent. M.D. Chairman.

John Hallett
William Tapscott
John Salter
Isaac Wilson
J. Lindzey

At the above adjourned meeting held at the Globe here it was moved by Mr. Tho^s Franklin seconded by Mr. Tho^s Leat, that a way Rate be granted at one penny in the Pound, from the continued Complaints and Annoyance by certain Individuals, allowing Rubbish, Timber, Carts &c to remain on the Highways, also not mowing their Hedges and cleaning ditches as required by Act of Parliament, The Surveyors are hereby requested to Summon all parties so infringing on the Act.

Robert Brent. M.D. Chairman

Isaac Wilson
Tho^s Franklin
Tho^s Leat
William Tapscott
John Hallett
John Salter
Henry Brew

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry
on Thursday next at 11 o'clock in the forenoon for the
purpose of making out a list of Competent men Qualified and
liable to serve as Constables for the Parish of Woodbury

(Signed)

Robt Brent M.D. Churchwarden
Sir Foster Hale B.
James Hatten } Overseer
Robt Phillips }
J. S. Loring M.P. Overseer

Dated Woodbury
15th July 1851

According to the above notice we the
Parishioners in Vestry Assembled do return the following
list of Persons liable and Qualified

John Stamp - Carpenter
Richard Kenwood Cooper
Thomas Ware Yeoman
William Pappell Yeoman

Robert Brent M.D. Chairman
Robert Phillips Overseer
W. Weston

J. S. Loring

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Tuesday the 25th instant at half past eleven o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of nominating Guardians and Overseers Also Appointing Churchwardens and Surveyors of the Highways Also Auditing Overseers and Surveyors A/c^t.

The Committee Appointed is requested to meet at the Apt^e Overseers on Thursday the 28th instant at 3 o'clock P.M. for the purpose of Examining Parish Officers A/c^t and to report the same at the Vestry Meeting

(Signed)

- J. Loveland Relford Perpetual Curate.
- Robert Brent M. D. } Churchwardens
- Richard Coles }
- Rayton F. Elliott Justice } Overseers
- James L. Butler }
- Joseph Tucker }
- Rob^t Phillips }
- Isaac Wilson } Surveyors
- Wm. Tapscott }
- John Hallett }
- John Salter }
- H. Lindsey Apt^e Overseers

Lated Woodbury
10th March 1857

Accordingly to the above ^{notice} we the Parishioners in Vestry Assembled it was proposed by Colonel Lee seconded by W^r Hale that Sir Rayton Drake Bart^e and Mr James Ashford be nominated Guardians - Proposed by Sir Rayton Drake seconded ~~James Ashford~~ by Colonel Lee that Robert Brent M. D. and Mr Richard Coles be Appointed Churchwardens by the Parishioners According to the Annual and Ancient Custom - We also nominate the following Parishioners for Overseers, William Pike, John Scott Hayward, William Hayman, and Thomas Franklin,

- Lewis Lee
- William Parabee
- John Ware
- James Phillips
- William Howell
- William Pyne

We also Appoint for Surveyors of the Highway

Thomas Gibbings	Lower Quarter
Henry New	Upper Quarter
James L. Butler	Saltorton Quarter
Francis Nicka	Nutwell Quarter

Also proposed by J^r Brent seconded by Sir Rector Drake that the C^o Overseer make a separate Acc^t on a separate Book, to show the Overseers years Acc^t at the next Ladyday Meeting, similar to the Accounts produced previous to the Poor Law Act.

Also proposed by J^r Brent seconded by Mr Butler that the Vestries & Vestry Clerks Act 13 & 14 Vic^t C^o 7 should be embraced by this Vestry and to accept Mr Gibbings offer to Rent a Room being part of Hodgsons tenement of the said Mr Gibbings at the Annual sum of three Pound ten shillings, Mr Gibbings ^{agrees} to put ~~it~~ and keep ~~the room~~ in good repair - Proposed by Mr James Ashford seconded by Mr John White that a Meeting of the Parishioners be called for Wednesday the 2^d April next at 2 of Clock in the Afternoon for the purpose of revising the poor list and to take into Consideration the Act ^{13 & 14 Vic^t C^o 7} for the better Assessing & Collecting the Poor Rates and Highway Rates in respect of small tenements, also to grant a way Rate

The Committee appointed made their report to the Vestry that they had Examined the Overseers years Accounts and found them correct

it is also proposed that the balance of the Acc^t due for the drain in the Village be paid from the Highway Rates

Also proposed by J^r Brent seconded by Sir Rector Drake that Charles Upcott of Limpstone do take care of the Church Clock, keep it in good repair, Windup the same, from Ladyday 1851 to Ladyday 1852 at the sum of Four Pounds

The Committee ~~also~~ appointed Examined the Surveyors Accounts and made their report that different sums are paid for wages in the Parish - its agreed that it be left

to the discretion of the Surveyors respecting the wages
and also ^{the} ~~the~~ ^{of course} ~~the~~ ^{shall be from} ~~the~~ ^{to 5. 10. 11. for}
the Hours, the new work on the Road
we also order a poor Rate to be collected at 2 in the Pⁿ

Proposed by J^r Brent seconded by Mr Mansden
that the best Thanks of the Vestry be given to Sir Augustus
Arake Bart^e for the restoration of ~~the~~ ^{the} aisle in the
Church and for his general ^{Courtesy and help} ~~and~~ conduct to the
Parishioners at all times

Committee Appointed to Examine Overseers
and Surveyors Accounts for the year ending Ladyday 1832

- Mr W. Sanders
- Mr John White
- Mr Jas Ashford
- Mr R. White
- Mr Thos Hodgdon

Robert Ashford Chairman

Drayton Fildes

- George W. Lee
- Thos Gibbings
- John White
- Thos Scatt
- James Stevens
- Thos Hodgdon
- Thos Hodgdon
- John Salter
- Thos Franklin
- Robert Brent. Secy
- Thos W. Hole
- James Ashford
- Thos W. Hole
- W. D. Deyworth
- Thos Hodgdon

The Parishioners are requested to meet in the Vestry on Wednesday next the 2^d April at 2 o'clock, P. M. for the purpose of Revising the Poor List - Also to take into Consideration the Tenement Rating Act, Also to order a way Rate

Sated Woodbury
26th March 1851

Robert Brent M. D.	} Churchwardens
Rich ^d . Coles	
Joseph Tucker	} And
Rev. Phillips	
H. Livings	
	} Overseers

According to the above notice we the undersigned in Vestry assembled after perusing the Poor List, recommend the Guardians to test some of the paupers with the Workhouse But in most of the Poor on the List we consider and strongly recommend that no alteration be made in their pay Proposed by Dr Brent seconded by Mr. Ashford that the Resolution of the ^{25th} 25th March last respecting the Tenement Act, be rescinded - We also order and Grant a way Rate at sixpence in the Pound

Wm. F. Childers
Chairman
Robert Brent M. D.

J. W. Sp. Hole
Thos. Gibbins
Rich. White
William Hayman
Francis Pecks
William Toppell

We the Undersigned Churchwardens and Surveyors of the Highway do request the Parishioners to meet in the Vestry on Wednesday the 4th June next at 11 of Clock in the forenoon to Consider respecting of turning an Arch over Grindle Brook

Robert Brent M. D. } Churchwarden

Tho. Gibbins }
Ja. L. Butler } Surveyors &
Francis Nicks }
Henry New }
}

Dated Woodbury
24th May 1857

Agreeably to the above notice it was Moved by Mr. Ja. Ashford seconded by Mr. John White that the Parishioners having taken into Consideration the dangerous state of Grindle Brook be most respectfully to draw the Attention of the Bridge Committee to the fact - And would strongly recommend a Bridge to be thrown across the stream before the next winter as after heavy rains it is impassable for Horses and alike dangerous both to Human Life and Cattle

Moved by Mr. Gibbins seconded by Mr. Hallett that the present ^{Meeting} adjourn to the Parish Room

At the adjourn Meeting the Churchwardens are requested to Purchase the forms that is required for the Parish Room

Robert Brent M. D. Chairman
Tho. Gibbins
Isaac Wilson
John Hallett
John White
James Ashford
Tho. Leath
H. Living

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Parish Room
Woodbury on Thursday the 25th of September at 11 o'clock
in the forenoon to pass the Churchwardens Accounts and
grant a Rate for the ensuing year and transact other
Business

J. Loveland Pulpford
Perpetual Curate

Woodbury
September 20th 1857

Robert Brent M. D. } Church
Nico? Cole } wardens

Obediently to the above notice we the Parishioners
Assembled request the Churchwardens to stop the
payment for Sparrows, We also agree to order a Church Rate
at one penny in the Pound, We also request the Churchwardens
to purchase a table and sufficient quantity of Chairs for
the use of the Parishioners in the Parish Room -

J. Loveland Pulpford
Chairman

Tracyton F. Shield Drake.

John White
James Ashford
Thos Gibbins
W. Hayman

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Parish
 Pay Room on Wednesday the 17th instant at 11 of Clock in
 the forenoon to take into Consideration the recommendation
 of the Board of Guardians for the St. Tho^s Union in
 respect of Settlement Cases

Walter F. Elliott Drake	}	Guardians
James Adolphus		
		and
Thos ^r Franklin	}	Coopers
W. Lindsey		

Dated Woodbury

2^d Nov^r 1851

Agreeably to the above notice we the
 Undersigned do unanimously agree to the Resolutions of the
 St. Thomas Union with respect to Pauper Settlement Cases

T. Trauxton F. Elliott Drake

Chairman

Price W. Lee

James A. Ford

Robert A. Brent. Secy

John White

Thos. Franklin

Rich^d White

At a Meeting held the 25th February 1857 at the Parish Pay Room the following Parishioners were named as Qualified and liable to Act as Constables for the ensuing year as required by the 5. and 6. Vict. c. 109

- | | |
|------------------|-----------|
| Richard Kemwood | Cooper |
| John Stamp | Carpenter |
| Thomas Ware | Yeoman |
| William Pepprell | Yeoman |
| John Pile | Yeoman |
| William Satter | Yeoman |
| John Ware | Yeoman |
| William Gibbins | Yeoman |

Robert Brent M.D.
 V. L. Sidney
 William Fyle

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Parish Pay Room on Thursday the 25th day of March next at 11 of clock in the forenoon, for the purpose of Nominating Guardians and Overseers, Also appointing Churchwardens and Surveyors of the Highways, and Examining Overseers and Surveyors Acct^d " The Committee Appointed to Examine Parish Officers Accounts is requested to meet at the Assistant Overseers House, on Monday the 27th instant at 3 of clock P.M.

J. Loveband Purford
Perpetual Curate

(Signed)

Robert Brent M. A. }
Rich^d Cole } Churchwardens

William Pyle }
W. Hayman } Overseers
Thos. Franklin }
H. Lindsey }

Henry Rew }
Thos. Gibbings } Surveyors of
Francis Richards } the Highways
Jas L. Butler }

Dated Woodbury
13th March 1752

Obediently to the above notice we the Parishioners assembled it was proposed by J^r Brent seconded by Coland Lee that Sir Proctor Drake Bart & Mr James Ashford be nominated Guardians, Proposed by Mr Ashford seconded by Mr Gibbings that the following Householders be nominated for Overseers,

- | | |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------|
| Mr William Bradbeer | Elford Quarter |
| Mr William Pyne | Town Quarter |
| Mr William Haull | Nutwell Quarter |
| Mr Jas ^r Phillips | Sutton Quarter |
| Sir Proctor Drake Bart (Nutwell) | Levett Lee (Town) |
| Wm ^r Franklin (Elford) | John Ware (Sutton) |
| Wm ^r Phillips (Town) | John Hall (Sutton) |

Proposed by Edward Lee seconded by Mr. Holt
that J^r Brent, M. A. and Richard Cole, be nominated
and Appointed Churchwardens ^{by the Parishioners} for the ensuing year
According to Ancient and Annual Custom

We also Appoint the following Parishioners
for Surveyors of the Highways

- Mr. Thos^r Scott Elford Quarter
- Mr. John White Sallerton Quarter
- Mr. Rich^d White Nutwell Quarter
- J. S. Lindsey Town Quarter

Caroline Brooks made Application in behaf of her Father John
Brooks stating he was not able to pay the money advanced to
his Son under Majestates order, he being ill in the Hospital
Overseer ordered out to enforce the warrant against him
for the Present, The Overseers Accounts were read
over and Approved of, The Warwardens Accounts were
read over and it appears that a Barrell drain turned
by Mr. Butler at Middle Grindle House which Cost
12^s 6^d it was moved by J^r Brent, seconded by Mr James
Pomeroy, that it be struck out from the Parish Book
being Considered as not belonging for the Parish to pay

a Letter having been received this morning from the
Rev^d J. Corpe as Curstas it was moved by J^r Brent seconded
by Mr Cole Churchwardens and Carried unanimously
that as no new Rate has been made on Land, though
the Value of produce, has so much fallen, the proposition
Contained therein, could not be entertained

The Vestry Clerk is ordered to forward a Copy of the
Above ~~Resolution~~ Resolution ~~to be forwarded to~~ to Mr. Corpe
Committee appointed to Examine Overseers and Surveyors
Accts for the year ending Saturday, 1853

- Mr. James Ashford
- Mr. Gibbins
- Mr. Sagworthy
- Mr. Thos^r Maydon
- Mr. Thos^r Brambleton

44
Moved by J. Brent seconded by Mr. J. B. Butler that
Mr. Pavey's name be rated at £7 instead of £6
as at present

J. Brent
Mr. Wolfe
Chairman

Frederick Hole
Percy W. Lee
Robert Brent h.c.

John White
Benjamin Osborne

At a Vestry Meeting held this 13th day
of May 1852 after public notice to take into consideration
and Consult respecting of turning an Arch over Grivole
Brook and to transact other Parish matters, a letter
being produced by the Churchwardens from Mr. James
Russell the Organist declining to play the Organ in
Woodbury Church, it was moved by J. Brent seconded
by Mr. Tho. Franklin that until an Organist be
regularly appointed ^{by the Parishioners} the Organ should be shut up,
(an Amendment) was moved by Mr. J. B. Butler seconded
by Mr. John White that the Question stand over for a
month, the original motion Carried by the Vestry
Vote of the Chairman, it was moved by J. Brent
seconded by Mr. Butler that the Question respecting
of turning an Arch over Grivole Brook is to be adjourned
to this day 3 weeks to allow the warden to obtain
estimates for turning the same

Tho. Franklin
Robert Brent h.c.
Frederick Hole
William Phillips
J. B. Butler

Truster J. M. Drake
(Chairman)
Percy W. Lee
John Hallett
W. Dugworth
W. Hayward

The Parishioners are requested to meet at the Parish
 Vestry Room on Thursday the 3rd June next at 11 o'clock in the
 forenoon to consult on turning an Arch over Grindle Brook,
 and to order a Way Rate to defray the Expenses of the
 year, Also to transact any other Parish matters, And
 consult on Electing an Organist

Robert Brent M. D. }
 Rich^d? Cole } Churchwardens
 J. Lunday }
 John White } and
 Tho^s. Leath } Surveyors of the
 William Pyne } Highways

(Signed)

Sated Woodbury
29th May 1852

Agreeably to the above notice We the Parishioners
 Agree to accept Mr. Wm Phillips Tender of £74 0 0 According
 to the Model Plan and Specification produced for erecting
 a Bridge across Grindle Brook £21 being subscribed by
 certain Parties the remaining sum of £53 the Parishioners
 Consider ought to be taken from the Way Rate, what sum
 is deficient at the year ending ^{thereon} Lady day 1853 must be
 made up from another Rate, We ~~also~~ unanimously agree
 to Grant a Way Rate at 4 in the Pound to assist the
 Surveyors in carrying the above into effect, As Mr. Butler
 will not agree to find more than 5 thousand Brick for the
 Arch and 15 thousand will be required to be drawn from
 Mr. Wm Phillips Brick Yard we the following agree to draw
 the same (gratis) Wm Phillips 5 thousand, J. Lunday 2 do,
 W. Austin 1 do, Tho^s. Leath 1 do, John Sanders 1 do,
 Mr Hale 1 do, John Hattlett 1 do, R. Sawwathy 1 do,
 W. Higman 5 hundred, W. Stokes 5 hundred,

That from a Communication received from the Churchwardens
 respecting the Organ, we unanimously agree that

[Turn over]

The Right of the Parishioners in the Appointment
 of Organist shall be upheld, and that the
 Churchwardens are requested to obtain the Keys
 of the Organ from the Rev. J. L. Palford and act
 upon the Resolution of the Vestry passed 13th May
 last

- James Ashford Chairman
- Robert S. Brent M.D. } Churchwardens
- Wm. T. Voles } Churchwardens
- Francis P. Hale
- Geo. L. Butler
- Thos. Leath
- John White
- John Hallett
- William Stokes Junr
- William Stokes
- William Haysian
- Henry Barton
- William Phillips